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WATERS OF RIDEAU RIVER CONTINUE TO RISE - These cars are cautiously negotiating the 
Russell Road  which is covered with 15 inches of water just north of Hurdman’s Bridge in Overbrook.  
Some of the families in these houses have been forced to move out.  Photo by T.V.Little 

Ottawa Journal, April 10, 1947, p. 17 
 



President’s Report 
By Glenn Clark 
 
 We have just experienced yet another calamity with the recent ice storm that knocked out hydro for 
thousands of people and caused further tree damage.  As if last May’s derecho storm was not enough.  Yet, 
there is great hope with summer temperatures in the forecast.  Truly, typical of Ottawa.  Winter one day, and 
summer the next. 
 
 I am pleased to announce our Annual General Meeting, on the topic of Blossom Park history and it will 
take place at the Sawmill Creek Swimming Pool on D’Aoust Street in Blossom Park.  Further details are pro-
vided later in this Newsletter.  This is a topic dear to my heart, as a life-long resident.  It has never been cov-
ered before.  It is hard to believe that this neighbourhood was first subdivided in 1911 and therefore has 112 
years of history.  The meeting will take place on Saturday, April 22, 2023 at 2:30 p.m.  I hope you will join us. 
 
 I am also pleased to announce a new post card series on the topic of Gloucester bridges.  As you may 
recall, our first post card series honoured the 100th anniversary of the First World War and focused on 
Gloucester participants in that war.  The entire series of five cards is still available to anybody interested.  We 
have already printed the first card in the new bridge series, which features a very interesting and historic pho-
tograph of the humpback bridge that formerly crossed the CPR rail line on today’s Riverside Drive north of 
Heron Road and near Vincent Massey Park. 
 
 Additional bridge photos are now being selected for further cards in the series to be printed later this 
year.  If you have any vintage pictures of bridges within the original boundaries of Gloucester including 
Rideau River crossings, we would love to hear from you.  One topic of particular concern is the future of 1898 
CPR bridge at Hurdman’s Bridge.  Will it be restored, or will it be replaced?  A historic photo of this bridge 
would be a great addition to the new post card series and a reminder of merits of preserving our railway herit-
age.  All cards printed so far will be available free of charge at our Annual General Meeting. 
 
 This newsletter revisits Overbrook with even more detail on the history of the neighbourhood.  This 
new story focuses on buildings on the old Russell Road (now North River Road), most of which have been de-
molished for the Rideau River Park many years ago.  I hope you enjoy it. 
 
 I also wish to extend a big thank you to Brian McGovern who recently donated the original two signs 
from the Carlsbad Springs railway station.  If you want to see them, please come to our office for Doors Open 
during the first weekend in June. 
 
 One last thing, please consider joining me for my 2023 Jane’s Walk, which will take place on Saturday, 
May 6th at 10:00 a.m. departing from the Rockcliffe Lookout on Sir George-Étienne Cartier Parkway. 
 
 Now, lets look forward to the gentle breezes of spring, a burst of flowers and the coming summer. 
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Overbrook Revisited 
By Glenn Clark 
 
Overbrook Public School – The First Few Years 
 A stone mounted on the front of Overbrook 
Public School reads ‘1916’ and the plan was to 
open the school in September of that year, but it 
didn’t happen.  As a result of a number of construc-
tion and supply chain delays, the school actually 
opened on April 9, 1917, the day after Easter 
[Ottawa Citizen, January 5, 1917 p.6].  A teacher 
was hired based on that date [Ottawa Journal, 
March 28, 1917 p.13]. 
 
 The school also didn’t open with its own 
board of trustees but instead it was an annex of 
Eastview Public School and shared the same school 
board.  Eastview Public School was originally 
Gloucester School Section Number 25, at least until 
Eastview was incorporated as a village on Decem-
ber 11, 1908.  In those days, each school section 
had its own Board of Trustees. 
 
 Overbrook Public School finally became a 
self-governing school on February 15, 1922 and 
became its own school section.  Overbrook became 
the ‘new’ Gloucester School Section Number 25.  

Up until this point, only one teacher had been en-
gaged despite the existence of two classrooms in the 
original 1916 building.  When it became a self-
governing school, they were finally considering the 
use of the second classroom and to hire a second 
teacher.  There were 40 to 50 students at the time 
[Ottawa Citizen, February 15, 1922 p.2].  A two-
room addition was planned in 1923, bringing the 
school to four classrooms [Ottawa Citizen, July 17, 
1923 p.5]. 
 
Overbrook Police Village Boundaries 
 Since the Time-Line History was published, 
the question was posed about the original bounda-
ries of the Overbrook Police Village.  The answer 
was provided by Ottawa city maps from 1936 and 
1940.  Overbrook included Lots 8 and 9, Junction 
Gore which covered the area from Stevens Avenue 
in the north to Wright Street in the south.  The west-
ern boundary was the Rideau River and it ran as far 
east as St. Laurent Boulevard, then Base Line Road.  
There was a further addition to the north-east where 
Overbrook extended around the eastern boundary of 
Vanier, to include a small portion of the south half 
of Lot 7, Junction Gore.  This reached as far north 
as McArthur Avenue.  Please see the following map 
with the Overbrook Police Village shown in light 
green. 

 The Stone Sparks House 

Overbrook Police Village 
boundaries highlighted.  
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Wandering Down Old Russell Road 
 
Note – Russell Road numbering was not consistent 
over time.  Numbers appear to have been adjusted 
on a couple of occasions in the 1930s and 1940s.  
This has made it difficult to accurately identify lo-
cations when reviewing city directories and the 
newspaper archives. 
 
1036 North River Road (formerly 194 Russell 
Road) – More about the Overbrook Communi-
ty Hall 
 As previously mentioned in the Time-Line 
History, the hall opened on February 15, 1923.  
The property had been purchased by John S. Ni-
cholson, William Lafleur and Andrew Kirkwood 
on behalf of the Overbrook Police Village from 
James C.S. Wolff and wife on August 17, 1922.  
Two mortgages were taken totalling $1,600 to 
build the community hall with the mortgagor being 
Mary H. Nicholson (née Jensen).  Mary was an 
immigrant from Denmark and was not related to 
John S. Nicholson, who was born in Fitzroy Town-
ship.  The hall operated as Overbrook Community 
Hall Company Ltd. 
 
 Upon the death of Mary Nicholson on No-
vember 15, 1930, the mortgages were still not fully 
repaid.  This led to complications and the hall 
passed to the ownership of Joanna McQuentin ef-
fective February 1, 1931.  A dispute arose concern-
ing this ownership which lasted until April 21, 
1937, when the Supreme Court of Ontario ruled in 
favour of Ms. McQuentin.  In order to recover 
ownership of the hall, it was necessary for John S. 
Nicholson and William Lafleur to pay Ms. 
McQuentin $1,850. 
 
 Over the years, the hall served various 
community purposes.  It was noted as a dance hall 
in 1938 and it housed various businesses including 
the Oscar Renaud Barber Shop during World War 
II.  On February 1, 1947, the hall was sold to Mi-
chael Lackner for $4,200, who ran various busi-
nesses but best known as Lackner Enterprises, an 
auction house. 
 
 The building was sold to His Majesty the 
King on March 16, 1948 for $7,800, a sizeable 
profit for Mr. Lackner.  Michael Lackner contin-
ued his businesses at this location until the end of 
1960.  Described as a one-storey frame building, a 
tender required it to be removed or demolished by 
May 8, 1961 [Ottawa Citizen, March 20, 1961 
p.37]. 

1048 North River Road 
 This was a house originally built for Joseph 

Boucher in 1912.  Mr. Boucher died on July 16, 
1921 following a long career as a contractor.  Be-
fore his retirement in 1903, he was a member of 

the contracting firm Keating, Biggs, Wilson and 
Boucher, which built almost all the bridges for the 
Canada Atlantic Railway.  Angus MacDonald took 

over the residence in 1917, and eventually sold the 
house to His Majesty the King on September 15, 
1951 as part of the Rideau River Parkway Plan.  

Unlike most of the other buildings on the west side 
of North River Road, this house still exists today. 

5 Olga Street, just west of North River Road 
 This was the former John S. Nicholson 
house dating back to 1911.  Mr. Nicholson was 
one of the founders of the Overbrook Police Vil-
lage.  He sold the lot and house to the Federal Dis-
trict Commission on January 13, 1954.  Mr. Ni-
cholson, described as a pioneer of Overbrook, died 
on October 13, 1957.  His residence at the time of 
his death was located at 160 Prince Albert Street.  
He had been a Gloucester township councillor and 
a member of the Overbrook Public School board 
[Ottawa Journal, October 15, 1957 p.25].  A ten-
der required that the house be removed or demol-
ished by June 30, 1962.  It was described as a two 
and half storey brick veneer duplex with a garage 
[Ottawa Citizen, May 12, 1962 p.44.]. 
 
1058-1060 North River Road (formerly 210, 212 
Russell Road) 
 Formerly the site of René’s Sundries until 
the end of 1959, it became the Quebec Foods of 
Canada (wholesaler) owned by Nick Zaine in 
1960 and 1961.  It was a National Capital Com-
mission tool house in 1965 and 1966 and the build-
ing was demolished by 1967. 
 
 John S. Nicholson and Charles R. Leduc 
originally took out a mortgage for $2,100 on July 
1, 1922, to build a store and residence.  John S. 
Nicholson became the sole owner on October 13, 
1931 and the mortgage was fully paid on October 
3, 1946.   
 
 When the building was completed in 1923, 
this became the residence of John S. Nicholson, a 

tinsmith, but was quickly rented out to Robert and 
Ethel Mattman for their residence, the Overbrook 
post office and grocery store.  This lease arrange-

ment continued until 1927, when the Mattman’s 

.

 



moved to a new building at 1066 North River   
Road. 1058-1060 North River Road later became 
the original location of Morin’s Store from 1938 
until they moved next door (1062 North River 
Road) in 1945.  This is when René’s  Sundries 
was founded, first operated by René Charles De-
sautels and following the sale of the business on 
April 6, 1946, by Arthur Dugal.  The building was 
later sold to Mr. Dugal on October 4, 1946 who in 
turn sold it to Her Majesty the Queen on May 29, 
1952 as part of Rideau River Parkway plan. 

1062 North River Road (formerly 214 Russell 
Road) 
 On September 4, 1944, Andrew Morin pur-
chased Lot 13 and 14, Plan 361 from the Township 
of Gloucester.  A mortgage was taken out on Sep-
tember 20, 1944, to build a store.  This was known 

as Morin’s Grocery Store.  By 1948, it was re-
named MacLean’s Market (which was for sale in 
June 1949) and through most of the 1950s, it was 
known as Overbrook Servicenter Grocery.  Mr. 
Morin sold the building to the Federal District 
Commission on January 22, 1954, as part of the 
Rideau River Parkway project and to clear the 
riverfront.  Andrew J. Morin died in a car accident 
on Montreal Road near Orléans on September 21, 
1956.  The grocery store business was for sale in 
December 1959 and in 1960 through 1962, it was 
Electronics Unlimited.  Tenders for demolition 
were due on July 12, 1963.  It was a two-storey 
brick veneer building with a ground floor store and 
a second-floor apartment.  The Morin residence 
was located at 5 Prince Albert Street from 1919 
until Mr. Morin’s 1956 death. 
 
1063 North River Road (formerly 351 Russell 
Road) 
 This was the residence of Mrs. Helen 
Doherty which was destroyed by fire on August 
13, 1931.  The house had been originally built by 
Thomas H. Adams in 1918.  The house was not 
rebuilt following the fire, and the property was lost 
to tax arrears on October 1, 1936.  It was turned 
over to the Township of Gloucester and eventually 
became part of Riverside Memorial Park. 
 
 The home of Peter D. O’Neill located at 3 
Queen Mary Street was also destroyed in the same 
fire and was also lost to tax arrears on October 1, 
1936.  The house had originally been built in 1914 
for Francis Xavier Laderoute, the founder of Over-
brook.  The lot was resold by the Township of 
Gloucester to Victor F.R. Fabricius on October 5, 
1938 who took out a mortgage to build a new 
house on the fire site. 

1066 North River Road (formerly 206, 220-222 
Russell Road) – More about the Overbrook 
Post Office 
 The post office had its beginnings else-
where.  The first postmaster was John Sedvall 
from April 14, 1919 until September 8, 1920, and 
the post office was located at 39 Queen Mary 
Street.  This was followed by Clinton E. Pharoah 
from February 5, 1921 until May 18, 1922.  The 
location of the Post Office (and a grocery store) 
was on the east side of Russell Road.  The specific 
location has not been identified.  This may have 
been the same grocery store operated by Robert F. 
Mattman.  Mr. Mattman then became the postmas-
ter on January 3, 1923 who relocated to 1058 
North River Road sometime that year. 
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Ottawa Journal, April 9, 1946 p.19 
How René’s Sundries got its name 
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Ottawa Citizen, August 13, 1931, p.5 
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 The Post Office and grocery store then re-
located 220-222 Russell Road from 1927 to 1950.  
Robert F. & Ethel M. Mattman purchased this lo-
cation as an empty lot on August 31, 1926 and 
took out a $2,000 mortgage to build a house and 
store. 
 
 The new location likely was ready some-
time in 1927 and was operated by Mr. Mattman 
until his sudden death on January 26, 1928, from 
accidental electrocution at his place of employ-
ment, Costello, Crowe and Bellamy at 378 Bank 
Street [Ottawa Citizen, January 27, 1928 p.14].  
His widow, Ethel continued the business and post 
office until June 29, 1938.  Ethel remarried on 
September 28, 1938 to Henry Wallace Giles. 
 
 The Post Office and grocery was then tak-
en over by William Banning who remained in the 
position until April 16, 1943.  His son, Ross, was 

lost at sea on October 15, 1941 when the S.S. 
Vancouver Island was torpedoed by a U-boat off 
the west coast of Ireland.  105 lives were lost and 
there were no survivors. Ross was an assistant 

steward in the merchant navy [Ottawa Citizen, 
April 3, 1943 p.26].  Mr. Banning Sr. passed away 

on April 8, 1947. 

 From 1943 until 1947, the post office and 
grocery were operated by Mrs. Alice Gareau and 
from 1947 until closing in 1950, by Hector Gag-
non.  Mr. Gagnon sold the property to His Majes-
ty the King on May 28, 1948 for $12,900.  The 
grocery store also closed with the post office in 
1950.  Mr. Gagnon then opened a barber shop at 
the same address, which was in business for many 
years.  In the mid 1950s, this was also an outlet 
for Eastview Cleaners before relocating across the 
street to 1075 ½ North River Road in 1958. 
 
 The building still exists. 

1070 North River Road (formerly 224 Russell 
Road) 
 An empty lot was purchased by René Cle-
roux on January 22, 1938, and a $500 mortgage 
was taken to build a house.  Mr. Cleroux sold the 
house to His Majesty the King on February 23, 
1948 for $8,500 as part of the Rideau River Park-
way plan.  Described as a two-storey feather edge 
(similar to clapboard) dwelling, it was to be re-
moved or demolished by May 8, 1961 [Ottawa 
Citizen, March 20, 1961 p.37]. 
. 
 

S.S. Vancouver Island 
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1075/1075 ½ North River Road at Queen Mary 
 This location has an interesting history.  
Although, best known for a long-lived confec-
tionery, there was another business at the same 
address years earlier that was subsequently de-
molished. 
 
 The lots at the corner of Queen Mary 
Street and then Russell Road were sold by Lola 
L. Laderoute to John F. Sedvall on March 27, 
1929, who immediately mortgaged the property 
to Imperial Oil Limited to build what became 
known as the Overbrook Service Station.  The 
business clearly was not successful as Mr. 
Sedvall had turned over the property to Imperial 
Oil Limited on January 21, 1931.  The service 
station appears on a 1933 air photograph but was 
already closed in 1932 according to the city direc-
tory for that year, and the site was again vacant 
on a 1938 air photo.  Imperial Oil sold the proper-
ty to John Epps on June 24, 1942, with a 
‘covenant re the sale of gasoline’.  There had 
been a $2,000 mortgage in 1929 to build the gas 
station but the 1942 re-sale of a vacant lot had 
fallen to a mere $125. 

Ottawa Citizen, September 17, 1929 p.7 
  

 A mortgage was taken out by John Epps 
and wife on November 2, 1942, to build a house 
at 2 Queen Mary Street which appears on a 1945 
air photograph.  The house and lots were then 
sold to Mrs. Sadie Zaine on August 15, 1947 for 
$9,000.  Michael Zaine was Sadie’s husband, and 
he operated a restaurant at 327 Rideau Street, 
which was also the family’s previous residence. 

 Michael Zaine died on September 15, 
1950, and by 1955, son Joseph opened a 
drycleaning depot running out of the family home 
known as Superior Service Store.  In 1956, the 
city established zoning by-laws for Overbrook, 
which limited the location to residential use.  The 
drycleaning business was grandfathered.  When a 
building permit application was submitted to ex-
pand the building, it was assumed to be an expan-
sion of the ‘legal’ drycleaning business.  The new 
extension faced North River Road (then River-
side Drive) with a new address of 1075 Riverside 
Drive. 

 Instead of expanding his existing busi-
ness, Joseph Zaine opened the Queensway Vari-
ety Shop (also known as Queen Mary Variety 
Store and Zaine’s Store) in 1958.  At about the 
same time, the drycleaning business became a 
branch of Eastview Cleaners, also within the 
building extension at 1075 ½ Riverside Drive.  
The new confectionery business created consider-
able controversy in 1960 and 1961 when the zon-
ing violation was discovered.  There were a num-
ber of attempts to close down the ‘illegal’ busi-
ness, but it remained in operation for several 
years. 

          Ottawa Journal, March 23, 1960 p.3 
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 The store was for lease in June 1974 and 
the property was sold to Mike & Jamile Keldane 
on July 10, 1975.  The Keldane’s took the busi-
ness in a different direction when the drycleaning 
business closed and was replaced by Chef’s 
Home Pizza in the latter 1970s.  The house, gro-
cery store and pizzeria business were put up for 
sale in the winter of 1984 and the store for rent in 
May 1984.  The land transfer finally took place on 
October 12, 1984 to Doctor Sarkis Chalhoub, a 
family physician.  The Queensway Variety Shop 
lasted until 1986 and Chef’s Home Pizza until 
1987.  Both were vacant the following year and 
have now been converted to residential use.   
 
 Both Joseph Zaine and brother Nick served 
with the Royal Canadian Navy during World 
WWII. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
              
 
1076 North River Road (formerly Russell 
Road) 
 
 A vacant lot was acquired by Marcel Cle-
roux on August 16, 1938, which Mr. Cleroux 
mortgaged in order to build a house.  The house 
was sold to His Majesty the King on April 13, 
1948 for $8,650 as part of the Rideau River Park-
way Plan. 
 
 Described as a 1½ storey feather edged 
dwelling, a tender was issued for removal or dem-
olition by August 18, 1961 [Ottawa Citizen, June 
26, 1961 p.37. 
 

 

Ottawa Journal, September 16, 1950 p.5 

Stoker “Nick” Zaire 
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 Ottawa Citizen, April 5, 1960, p.3 
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Ottawa Citizen, September 14, 1942 p.19 
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1078 - 1082 North River Road (formerly 252 – 
254 Russell Road) 
 On June 16, 1947, the property, then va-
cant, was acquired by Eugene Robert who built 
two stores and a dwelling, which became 252 and 
254 Russell Road.  On July 15, 1947, Robert 
leased the property to Joseph R. Gougeon for 10 
years at a price of $12,000.  As part of the Rideau 
River Parkway plan, Mr. Robert sold the property 
and building to His Majesty the King on Novem-
ber 24, 1947 for $12,550.  Subsequently, the resi-
dence and stores were rented out. 
 

 The first business at 252 Russell Road 
opened as Lou’s Lunch Room, Taxi and Bar-
ber Shop in 1949 [Ottawa Citizen, May 13, 1949 
p.7].  The barber shop closed by July 1950 when 
the barber chair was for sale.  It became Ab’s 
Tea Room in 1951 and the Riverside Tea Room 
by 1954.  It remained in business until around 
1972.  This was the first restaurant operated by 
Halim ‘Al’ Ferris Saikali starting around 1952, 
who became a well known Ottawa restauranteur 
with the opening of Al’s Steakhouse at 327 Elgin 
Street in 1967.  It remains an Ottawa institution 
to this day. 
 

 The second business at 254 Russell Road 
opened as Thelma’s Self Serve Washeteria also 
known as Thelma’s Bendix Club, a self serve 
laundry in 1950.  In 1952, it became ‘Graphic 
Designs’ and in August 1952 through 1953, it 
was H and L Sales Appliances.  In 1954, it be-
came the Riverside Meat Market, which re-
mained in business until early 1970.  It had filed 
for bankruptcy in September 1969. 
 

 At the start of the 1970s, the residence at 
1082 North River Road (then Riverside Drive) 
was leased by Norman and Georgette Saikali.  
Norman, a father of six, was a chef at Jimmy’s 
Restaurant on Bank Street.  On June 1, 1971, 
Norman was involved in a scuffle with a 14 year 
old girl at Hog’s Back Falls.  Mr. Saikali, a non-
swimmer, was pushed into Devil’s Hole and 
drowned.  An inquest followed. 
 

 The building was demolished around 
1975. 
 

1084 North River Road (formerly 230, 258 
Russell Road) 
 George Prest purchased this empty prop-
erty on March 12, 1941 and afterwards took out a 
mortgage on March 9, 1942 to construct a build-
ing,  Once completed, this became the location of 
the Prest Meat Market.  By 1948, it was known 
as the Overbrook Market Grocery operated by 
Albert & Laurette Press (Prest).  On May 10, 
1949, the property and building was sold to His 
Majesty the King.  George Prest died on May 20, 
1951, and the business passed first to Elias & 
Massadi Saikali later in 1951 and then to Massad 
& Eva Shaheen from 1952 until the end of the 
decade.  The Shaheen’s experienced a tragedy 
when their son James Massey was killed in a heli-
copter crash during late July 1955 while serving 
in Alaska as a private with the 537 engineers of 
the United States Army.  He had previously been 
an assistant mathematics professor at Tri-State 
College in Angola, Indiana [Ottawa Citizen, July 
26, 1955 p.31].  A tender was issued for a build-
ing described as 2-storey brick veneer to be re-
moved or demolished by July 7. 1961 [Ottawa 
Citizen, May 19, 1961 p.51]. 
 
1087 North River Road 
 A Sunday School of the Christian and 
Missionary Alliance was first established in 

Overbrook as a branch of the Gospel Tabernacle 
on Bank Street in 1926.  The current church site 
was purchased on August 31, 1929 for $225.  The 

church known as the Overbrook Gospel Taber-
nacle was built between 1929 and 1931 and the 
first pastor, Reverend Robert Moore began his 

charge on December 11, 1932.  The original 
church was destroyed by fire on March 19, 1949.  
A new larger church was dedicated by Reverend 

Nathan Bailey on February 24, 1951 also with a 
new name, Riverview Community Church, but it 
remained a part of the Christian and Missionary 
Alliance.  Later in the 1950s, it became known as 

the Overbrook Alliance Church and it closed on 
September 27, 1964 with plans to build a new 
larger church on Smyth Road, under the name 

Alta Vista Alliance Church.  The church was sold 
on August 31, 1964.  Since then, it has been Riv-
er Road Gospel Hall.  The church had a substan-

tial renovation including an extension towards 
North River Road in 2018. 
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Ottawa Citizen, May 21, 1951 p. 23 

1125 North River Road – The Other Post  
Office 
 This was the final site of the Hurdman’s 
Bridge Post Office starting in 1954.  It closed 
under that name on April 18, 1959.  The Post 
Office continued until at least 1974 as Ottawa 
sub station 48.  It was operated by Hector & 
Idola Pigeon throughout these years.  Idola Pi-
geon had been the postmaster at its previous 
location, 1271-1273 Riverside Drive, immedi-
ately south of Tremblay Road since January 31, 

1945.  They were forced to relocate when their 
building was slated for demolition in 1954 for 
the construction of the new Hurdman’s Bridge. 
 
328 Russell Road (south of Presland Road) 
 Charles Weatherall, a native of Notting-
ham, England, immigrated to Canada in 1912.  
He purchased a lot at 43 Prince Albert Street 
(Lot 147 Plan 318) on March 19, 1913, a prop-
erty that was retained until it was sold by his 
estate on September 27, 1950.  Following the 
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Ottawa Citizen, March 21, 1949, p. 12 

The Weatherall mother and child were badly 
burned, and would eventually die 

 
Ottawa Journal, July 4, 1916 p.2 



Historic Gloucester                                                                      - 15  -                                                                       Vol 24, No 1, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ottawa Journal, February 24, 1951 p. 9 
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the tragic loss of his second wife, Elizabeth Parker, 
and son Arthur as a result of a kitchen stove fire 
accident on July 5, 1916, Charles enlisted to serve 
in the Great War on September 5th of the same year.  
He had three other children, two of whom (Leonard 
and William) were put into care of his father, 
Charles Sr. in Nottingham, England while Charles 
served in the war.  At the time of enlistment, he was 
described as age 36, 5 foot 8 inches, with fair com-
plexion, light brown hair, and blue eyes.  He was a 
motor mechanic.  He served as a private in the 4th 
Canadian Division of Signal Corps.  On August 7, 
1918, he was run over by a truck in Amiens, France 
and suffered compound fractures of the left leg.  He 
returned to Canada on January 13, 1919, transport-
ed on the S.S. Easequibo arriving in Halifax on Jan-
uary 25, 1919.  He was discharged as medically un-
fit on June 27, 1919. 
 
 Charles later went on to become a Provin-
cial Traffic Policeman until 1925 then he operated 
Russell Road Taxi before establishing the Weath-
erall Auto Salvage in 1929.  The taxi service was 
based out of a house on the west side of Russell 
Road. 
 
 Meanwhile, Emily Schwabe purchased 
property from James C.S. Wolff on June 15, 1926, 
and opened a business known as Russell Road Au-
to Salvage.  Part of this property and the business 
was sold to Charles Weatherall on November 5, 
1929, with more land acquired by Mr. Weatherall 
from James C.S. Wolff in Southwest quarter of Lot 
9 Junction Gore on May 15, 1934. 
 
 Charles then opened a service station known 
as the Charles Weatherall Garage on the east side 
of Russell Road, likely on the site of his future 
grand home that was built in 1938 at 1127 North 
River Road at the corner of Presland Road (then 
Keefer Street). 
 
 Between 1937 and 1939, he gradually tran-
sitioned his business from an auto salvage to a tour-
ist operation known as the Riverside Campsite, 

which featured a variety of all season cabins.  This 
business continued until the late 1940s. 

 Charles Weatherall sold 9 acres (the former 
tourist campsite) to His Majesty the King on No-
vember 12, 1948 for $40,000.  All the tourist cabins 
were removed or demolished by the summer of 
1949. 
 Charles Weatherall passed away on January 
22, 1950.  His eldest son, Charles Lawrence 

drowned at Cranberry Portage, Manitoba on June 
18, 1952, while serving with the RCMP.  He was 

the only son of Charles Sr.’s first wife, Eliza Ann 
Esment (1876-1901). 

 
 

Ottawa Journal, June 19, 1952 p. 1 



A History of the Riverside Campsite in Newspaper Ads and Stories 

First Ad – Ottawa Citizen, July 17, 1937 p. 6 

Ottawa Citizen, January 19, 1946 p. 18 
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Ottawa Citizen, January 19, 1946, p.18 
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Ottawa Citizen, January 24, 1946 p. 11 



Ottawa Journal, August 31, 1946, p.26 

The end of the Riverside Campsite 
Ottawa Citizen, July 11, 1949, p. 10 
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The Big Flood of April 1947 
Ottawa Journal, April 10, 1947 p.17 
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358 Russell Road - The Second Campsite 

 Fernande Cyr purchased a portion of Lot 

10 Junction Gore from Jean Robertson, executor 
for the Estate of Isabella W. Little on May 12, 
1931 for $1,500.00.  This was the property imme-

diately south of Weatherall’s Riverside Campsite. 

 This also became a campsite in the 1940s 
known as the Cyr Campsite, operated by Edouard 
and Fernande Cyr.  As part of the Rideau River 

Parkway project, the property was sold to His Maj-
esty the King on May 12, 1948 for $25,420.  
“Cabin No. 5’ of the Cyr Campsite was the last 
cabin tendered for removal or demolition by Au-

gust 1, 1950.  [Ottawa Citizen, June 23, 1950 p. 
35]   
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The Gloucester Historical Society 
Presents 

 
  “112 Years of Blossom Park History” 

Hosted by Glenn Clark 
 

 

Saturday, April 22, 2023, 2:30 p.m. 
Location: Sawmill Creek Swimming Pool 

Community Rooms 
3380 D’Aoust Street, Gloucester 

 

Open to the Public, Free parking and admission, Bus Route 93 nearby 
A brief Annual General Meeting will precede the presentation 

 

     The Gloucester Historical Society acknowledges financial assistance of the City of Ottawa 



To renew or become a new member, please complete this form and return it to the address below with 
your cheque.  Memberships may also be purchased on our website. 
 

 
Membership Form—Gloucester Historical Society/Société historique de Gloucester 

(Membership year runs from April 1 to March 31.) 
 

 
Annual Membership -  $20.00 for  one year  ____       10 year Membership $150.00 ____ 
 
 
NAME:_________________________________________Email Address:___________________________ 
 
 
ADDRESS:______________________________________Telephone #______________________________ 
 
 
CITY:_________________________________ PROV_________________POSTAL CODE ____________ 
 

Check here if you wish to receive your Newsletters by e-mail only.  (E-Mail address required 
above) 

 
Donations are always welcome.  We are a registered charitable organization and provide tax receipts. 
             
    Mailing Address:        Gloucester Historical Society 
       4550B Bank Street.   
       Gloucester, Ontario 
       K1T 3W6   
       Tel:  613-822-2076 

 
THE GLOUCESTER HISTORICAL SOCIETY  HISTORY ROOM WILL  

BE  OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 

BY APPOINTMENT ONLY FOR NOW. 

LOCATION: 4550B BANK STREET  

(ENTER FROM AT LEITRIM ROAD, NEXT TO FIRE STATION) 

FOR MORE INFORMATION CONTACT  

Glenn Clark at english@gloucesterhistory.com or 

Call 613-822-2076 and leave a message. 

Gloucester Historical Society gratefully acknowledges 
the financial support of the City of Ottawa. 
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Historic Gloucester is published by The Gloucester Historical Society quarterly.  It is intend-
ed as a Newsletter to members of the Society to provide interesting articles on  Gloucester’s 
past and to keep them informed of publications available, upcoming events and other items of 
general interest.  Comments, suggestions and potential articles are always welcome.  




